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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FF.MS. HRC.)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, Cl VI L PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WEVA 88-197
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 46-01455-03699
V. OGsage No. 3 M ne

CONSOLI DATI ON COAL COVPANY
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: Linda M Henry, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Phil adel phia,
Pennsyl vania for the Petitioner;
M chael R Peelish, Esq., Consolidation Coa
Conpany, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania for the
Respondent .

Bef ore: Judge Melick

This case is before ne upon the petition for civil penalty
filed by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to section 105(d) of the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. 0O 801 et
seq., the "Act," charging the Consolidation Coal Conpany (Consol)
with two violations of regulatory standards. The general issue
before me is whether Consol violated the cited regulatory
standards and, if so, the appropriate civil penalty to be
assessed in accordance with section 110(i) of the Act.

Order No. 2944627 issued pursuant to section 104(d)(2) of
the Act alleges a "significant and substantial" violation of the
m ne operator's Methane and Dust Control Plan, the "Plan", under
the regul atory standard at 30 C.F.R 0O 75.316, and charges as
foll ows: (FOOTNOTE 1)
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At the 4 Butt belt drive head roller there is no water spray at
the belt to belt transfer point. There was no operating spray for
the top belt at any | ocation along this belt.

The rel evant provisions of the Plan (See Exhibit G 3 page 2)
provide that at belt to belt transfer points dust contro
practices are to be "fresh air and water sprays." |nspector
Spencer Shriver, an Electrical Engineer for the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Adm nistration (MSHA), was conducting a spot
el ectrical inspection on January 7, 1988, at Consol's Osage No. 3
M ne when he noted that a violation previously cited in the 4
Butt belt drive area for failure to have operable water sprays
had apparently not been abated. Conpany Safety |nspector Dan
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Serge stated that water sprays presumably for the coal on the
belt had been installed two bl ocks inby the transfer point but
had not yet been hooked up. Inspector Shriver observed that the
sprays had been installed as stated but were indeed not hooked up
and that the inside of the pipe was dry. He al so observed that
the belt was operating and that the top of the belt was
conpletely dry. Wile Shriver could not recall whether coal was
bei ng transported on the belt Inspector-Trainee Mchael Kalich
who acconpani ed Shriver, did not see any coal on the belt or coa
bei ng dunmped at the transfer point.

Consol does not dispute that it did not have operable water
sprays for the coal on the beltline as charged but argues that a
spray located 25 to 40 feet fromthe section tail-piece directed
to the underside of the top belt was sufficient to neet the
Plan's requirnents. It is clear fromthe plain | anguage of the
Pl an, however, that the requirement for water sprays at "belt to
belt" transfer points is in addition to the specific requirenments
in the Plan for sprays directed to the "underside of the belt".
These are separate and di stinct requirements and each nust be
i ndependently conplied with (See Exhibit G3 p.2). Clearly water
sprays that do not spray the coal being transported on the
beltline would not neet the need to assure that such coal is
sufficiently wet to prevent the accunul ati on of respirable dust
and float coal dust. The violation is accordingly proven as
char ged.

I nspector Shriver opined that wi thout water sprays
functioning in accordance with the Plan there was a possibility
of generating respirable dust and accunul ating float coal dust.
He noted that float coal dust could I ead to an expl osion
resulting in lost time injuries. He thought that the hazards were
"reasonably likely". There was already sone dust in the area
according to Shriver although not sufficient to constitute a
violation. Shriver found the area to be "neither too wet nor to
dry."

On the other hand WIliam Kun, the Safety Supervisor at the
Osage No. 3 mine, testified that he arrived at the cited area
within 1 1/2 hours of being notified of the order and found the
roof and ribs in the area to be white with rock dust and
danp. (FOOTNOTE 2) He found no float coal dust. He al so observed that
there had been no problemw th float coal dust at this transfer
poi nt. He opined that there was no hazard existing as a result of
the cited conditions. Kun al so observed that there had been a
spray |l ocated 150 feet inby the transfer point but it had been
taken out nmore than a week before the order was issued because it
made the coal "overwet".
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Greg Yanak, Consol's Regional Supervisor for Respirable Dust and

Noi se Control also testified that he had taken coal sanmples from
the cited area and concl uded, based on those sanples, that
addi ti onal water sprays were not needed at the cited transfer
point. The evidence al so shows that the coal itself is npist when
extracted and may still be wet at the cited transfer point
obviating the need for additional water sprays. |ndeed subsequent
to the issuance of the order at bar the Plan was nodified and
approved by the Secretary to allow operator discretion as to the
need for water sprays upon the coal at belt to belt transfer

poi nt s.

In light of this evidence, the contradictory testinony
regardi ng the source of any coal dust and the apparent absence of
coal on the beltline at the tinme of the violation fromwhich it
coul d be determ ned whether, indeed, the coal was dry and dusty

or sufficiently wet to prevent the spread of coal dust, | cannot
find that the Secretary has nmet her burden of proving that the
violation was "significant and substantial". See Secretary v.

Mat hi es Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1 (1984). For the sanme reasons the
Secretary has failed to prove that the violation was anythi ng but
of low gravity.

However in |ight of the undisputed testinony that a
violation of the sanme nature had been cited the previ ous Novenber
and in light of the evidence that requirenents of the Plan for
wat er sprays near belt to belt transfer points was discussed with
mne officials at that time, it is clear that the violation was
caused by an aggravated failure to act amounting to nore than
ordi nary negligence and therefore by the "unwarrantable failure"
of the operator to conply. See Youghi ogheny and Chio Coal Co., 9
FMSHRC 2007 (1987). More specifically the evidence shows that
followi ng the Novenber 17, citation for the same type of
violation, Shriver had discussed with managenent the need for a
belt spray at all the transfer |ocations. Six weeks had
thereafter el apsed however and no appropriate functional sprays
were in place. Since it has been stipulated that there were no
i ntervening clean inspections between the issuance of the
precedential section 104(d) (1) order and the order at bar it is
clear that the order must be sustained as an order under section
104(d) (2) of the Act. See fn.1l supra, Secretary v. United States
St eel Corporation, 6 FMSHRC 1908 (1984). In addition, considering
all of the criteria under section 110(i) of the Act | find that a
civil penalty of $300 is appropriate.
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Order No. 2944628, also issued pursuant to section 104(d)(2) of
the Act, alleges a violation of the standard at 30 C.F. R 0O
75. 810 and charges as fol |l ows:

At the 5 Butt construction power center the 7,200 volt
energi zed cable was found to contain a damaged area
that was not properly repaired. The cable [sic] outer
j acket was cut back for a distance of 18 inches
exposi ng the ground schi el ding and phase conductors.
One phase conductor was danmaged exposing the bare
conductor and the ground shielding was partially

br oken.

At the conclusion of the Secretary's case-in-chief, Conso
noved for a directed verdict on the grounds that the Secretary's
evi dence did not support a violation of the cited standard. The
Motion for Directed Verdict (See Fed. R Civ. P.41(b) applicable
hereto by virtue of Commission Rule 1(b), 29 C.F.R 0O 2700.1(b))
was granted at hearing and the decision supporting that ruling is
set forth below with only non-substantive corrections:

The notion to anmend is too |ate. The notion for
directed verdict has been filed. That is the matter
that is before ne and clearly fromthe undi sputed

evi dence presented by the governnment there is no
violation of the cited standard, the standard with

whi ch we have been hearing evidence throughout the
government's case and upon which the operator has been
conducting its cross-exani nation

The cited standard 30 C.F. R 0O 75.810, reads as
follows: "In the case of high-voltage cables used as
trailing cables tenporary splices shall not be used and
all permanent splices shall be made in accordance with
section 75.604. Terminations and splices in all other
hi gh vol tage cabl es shall be made in accordance with
the manufacturer's specifications."”

The evidence in this case is that the cable at issue
was neither spliced nor termnated. Clearly then the
standard cited is not applicable to these proceedi ngs
and there has been no violation of that standard based
on the evidence presented. The Mdtion for Directed
Verdict is therefore granted.
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ORDER

Order No. 2944628 is vacated. Order No. 2944627 is affirned
as a "non-signficiant and substantial” order issued under section
104(d) (2) of the Act. The Consolidation Coal Conpany is directed
to pay civil penalties of $300 for the violation charged in Order
No. 2944627 within 30 days of the date of this decision.

Gary Melick
Adm ni strative Law Judge
(703) 756-6261
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTES START HERE
~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1. Section 104(d) of the Act provides as follows:

(1) If, upon any inspection of a coal or other mne, an
authorized representative of the Secretary finds that there has
been a violation of any mandatory health or safety standard, and
if he also finds that, while the conditions created by such
vi ol ati on do not cause imm nent danger, such violation is of such
nature as could significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a coal or other mne safety or health hazard,
and if he finds such violation to be caused by an unwarrantabl e
failure of such operator to conmply with such mandatory health or
safety standards, he shall include such finding in any citation
given to the operator under this Act. If during the sane
i nspection or any subsequent inspection of such nmine within 90
days after the issuance of such citation, an authorized
representative of the Secretary finds another violation of any
mandatory health or safety standard and finds such violation to
be al so caused by an unwarrantable failure of such operator to so
conply, he shall forthwith issue an order requiring the operator
to cause all persons in the area affected by such violation,
except those persons referred to in subsection (c) to be
wi thdrawn from and to be prohibited fromentering, such area
until an authorized representative of the Secretary determ nes
t hat such viol ati on has been abat ed.

If a withdrawal order with respect to any area in a
coal or other m ne has been issued pursuant to paragraph (1), a
wi t hdrawal order shall pronptly be issued by an authorized
representative of the Secretary who finds upon any subsequent
i nspection the existence in such mne of violations simlar to
those that resulted in the issuance of the withdrawal order under
paragraph (1) until such tinme as an inspection of such mne
di scl oses no sinilar violations. Follow ng an inspection of such
m ne which discloses no simlar violations, the provisions of
paragraph (1) shall again be applicable to that m ne

~FOOTNOTE_TWO
2. Inspector-Trainee Kalich agreed that the area around the
belt was in fact danp.



